
Form No. 10-!00 ,o-1 4) 
~~e'i· 

1H~so3 1~9 
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR 

NATIONAL PARK SERVICE 

NATIONAL REGISTER OF IHSTORIC PLACES 
INVENTORY-- NOMINATION FORM 

DNAME 
HISTORIC 

SEE INSTRUCTIONS IN HOW TO COMPLETE NATIONAL REGISTER FORMS 
TYPE ALL ENTRIES-- COMPLETE APPLICABLE SECTIONS 

Ihe Sweetest Heart of Mary Roman Catholic Church 

AND/OR COMMON 

Same 

fJLOCATION 
STREET & NUMBER 4440 Russell Street (at intersection of Canfield and Russell} 

NOT FOR PUBLICATION 

CITY. TOWN Detroit 
STATE 

Michigan 

DcLASSIFICATION 

CATEGORY OWNERSHIP 

_DISTRICT _PUBLIC 

_xBUILDING(S) x_PRIVATE 

VICINITY OF 

CODE 
26 

STATUS 

)L_OCCUPIED 

_UNOCCUPIED 

CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT 

13 
COUNTY CODE 

Wayne 

PRESENT USE 

_AGRICULTURE 

_COMMERCIAL 

_MUSEUM 

_PARK 

163 

_STRUCTURE 

_SITE 

_OBJECT 

_BOTH _WORK IN PROGRESS _EDUCATIONAL _PRIVATE RESIDENCE 

PUBLIC ACQUISITION ACCESSIBLE 
_IN PROCESS x_YES: RESTRICTED 

-BEING CONSIDERED _YES: UNRESTRICTED 

_NO 

DOWNER OF PROPERTY 
NAME The Archdiocese of Detroit 
STREET & NUMBER 

1234 Washington Boulevard 
CITY. TOWN 

Detroit _ VICINITY OF 

0LOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
COURTHOUSE. 
REGISTRY OF DEEDS, ETC. Wayne County Register of Deeds 

_ENTERTAINMENT x_RELIGIOUS 

_GOVERNMENT _SCIENTIFIC 

_INDUSTRIAL 

_MILITARY 

r - ~ r_ 

STATE 

_TRANSPORTATION 

_OTHER : 

Michigan 48226 

STREET & NUMBER 
City County Building, 2 Woodward Avenue 

CITY. TOWN STATE 
Detroit Michigan 48226 

~~REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS 
TITLE 

Michigan State Register of Historic Sites 
DATE 

DEPO~TORYFOR 

SURVEY RECORDS 

CITY. TOWN 

1974 _FEDERAL x._STATE _COUNTY _LQCAL 

Michigan History Division, Michigan Department of State 
STATE 

Lansing Michigan 



B DESCRIPTION . 

_EXCELLENT 

1GooD 
_FAIR 

CONDITION 

_DETERIORATED 

_RUINS 

_ UNEXPOSED 

CHECK ONE 

_UNALTERED 

~LTERED 

CHECK ONE 

...XoRIGINAL SITE 

_MOVED DATE _ __:_ __ 

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 

Sweetest Heart of Mary is a typical cruciform plan church built of red brick with stone 
trim and a patterned slate roof. The main west facade is distinguished by a stone 
base topped by a quatrefoil frieze over the main portal and twin buttressed towers 
surmounted by octagonal spires. A smaller spire marks the intersection of the nave 
with the transept. 

Several motifs unify the composition of the edifice: alternating patterns of pinnacles 
and decorated gables define the bases of the main spires; the gable ornamentation, 
consisting primarily of blind serrated lancets, is repeated on the four larger gables 
which mark the ends of the nave and transept; the pointed gable shape is echoed not 
only on the spires and the roof, but also on the side buttressing and above all of the 
portals; lancet windows fenestrate the towers, the gables, and the main three-portal 
facade; and circles dominate the tracery of the tower windows and the smaller windows 
of the north and south facades. 

A six-pointed star highlights the tracery of the window above the main west portal. 
Awarded prizes at the 1893 World Columbian Exposition in Chicago, the transept 
windows feature lancet tracery topped by a stone transom. Gables, pinnacled buttresses, 
and angled side entrances provide the nave facades with a multiplicity of line and 
form. 

The interior is characteristic of the hall church design, with high vaulted ceilings 
and slightly lower vaulted side aisles. The ceiling is supported by columns faced 
with plaster colonettes and topped by gold leaf Corinthian capitals. Between the 
ribs of the vaulting are paintings in a Byzantine style. The sanctuary, which was 
enlarged and repainted in the early twentieth century, contains a large marble altar 
with a nine foot statue of the Virgin Mary. The stained glass windows reflect the 
circle and six-pointed star motifs of the exterior tracery. 

To the immediate north of the church proper are three related buildings, the 1889 
school, and the Sisters• Convent and rectory, constructed around 1900. The most 
noteworthy of the three is the school, a three story rectangular brick building 
with a pedimented Ionic portico on the central projecting bay and an ornamental 
box cornice. The third story is defined by a stringcourse and windows decorated 
with round arch architraves and keystones. The roof is hipped and the central bay 
is distinguished by a gabled dormer. The convent is also a three story rectangular 
brick building; the central section has a truncated hipped roof while the side blocks 
have gabled roofs and eyebrow dormers. The rectory, a two story brick building, 
features ornamental brickwork on the quoins and window trim. The roof is both hipped 
and gabled, and the main west facade possesses a columned porch and a gabled dormer. 

The entire complex is landscaped with small trees and bushes and is protected by 
a stone and wrought iron fence. 
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE 

Sweetest Heart of Mary Roman Catholic Church achieves significance as a pivotal parish 
in the development of both the Polish Commu nity of Detroit and the city•s Catholic 
Diocese. The structure is also noteworthy as one of Detroit•s more striking remaining 
examples of Late Gothic Revival church architecture. 

The history of Sweetest Heart of Mary is deeply rooted in the development of Detroit•s 
early Polish communities. Most of the first Polish immigration to this area during 
the mid-nineteenth century came from Prussian-occupied north Poland. Bilingual because 
of the German occupation, these immigrants tended to gravitate towards German parishes 
such as St. Joseph•s located on Detroit•s near east side. However, when the Polish 
parishioners learned that they were to be restricted to a localized section of the 
new St. Joseph•s Church, approximately 300 families decided to start a church of their 
own. The ~onstruction of their house of worship, St. Albertus, coincided with the 
arrival in 1882 of Father Dominick Kolasinski, a dynamic Krakow priest w.ho contributed 
significantly to the development of both St . . Albertus and Sweetest Heart of Mary. 

St. Albertus, also nominated to the National Register, was completed in 1885 at a cost 
Which exceeded original estimates by approximately $20,000. This cost overrun helped 
to inflame factional feuding between the northern .Kazub Poles and more recent immigrants 
from Galicia in southern Poland. Kolasinski found himself caught in the middle. 

Father Kolasinski was dismissed from St. Albertus by Detroit Bishop Borgess following 
charges of embezzlement and sexual promiscuity which were filed by a group of disgruntled 
Kazub parishioners. When supporters of Kolasinski tried to prevent a new priest from 
entering St. Albertus, riots broke out, and animosities subsided only after Father 
Kolasinski left Detroit in April of 1886 for a new parish in North Dakota. The Diocese 
then tried to suppress Polish nationalism by promoting Americanization and encouraging 
Polish involvement in the larger German parish of St. Joseph•s. Nonetheless, Father 
Kolasinski •s supporters seceded and formed their own church. When Kolasinski 
returned to Detroit permanently in December of 1888, he became pastor of the new 
parish, Sweetest Heart of Mary. 

The first Sweetest Heart building, . now the school, was erected on the Russell-Canfield 
site in 1889. This building originally housed a school, a rectory, and a chapel with a 
seating capacity of 1000. It was designed by Spier and Rohn s of Detroit and was 
constructed so that it could easily be connected to the new church. The main church 
building, with a seating capacity of 2,400, \1as completed in 1893 at a cost of 
$125,000. Contractors included Rogers, Smith, and McDonald, stonework, and Leonard 
Price, brickwork. During the late 1890s, a major financial crisis was averted after 
many parishioners took out second mortgages on their homes in order to accumulate 
sufficient funds to save the church. Exhausted by this financial crisis and by the 
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The Sweetest Heart of Mary Church complex is located on the east side of Russell Street 
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Significance (continued) 

. 

series of hearings which eventually cleared him of the changes responsible for 
his djsmissal in 1885, Father Kolasinski died in 1898. 

During the troubled years of the 1890s, the Sweetest Heart of Mary parish acquired 
an 1894 Austin organ. Now, the oldest electrified organ in the state, it is also one 
of the nation's few remaining instruments of this vintage. Detroit was a major 
organ manufacturing center during the 1890s, and Sweetest Heart received the second 
organ built by the newly organized Austin Organ Company. The firm, now located in 
Connecticut, is currently the largest producer of custom-built wind organs in 
America. 

Once the heart of a thriving, self-sufficient Polish community, Sweetest Heart of 
Mary is presently located in the middle of an urban renewal area. Although its 
congregation has dwindled to approximately 200, new housing in the area may attract 
more parishioners, and the Polish-American Congress is currently developing 
programs to draw young people of Polish origin back into the neighborhood. 
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